
ANNEX V 
ENQUIRY POINTS 

(referred to in Article 86) 

EC PARTY 
EUROPEAN 
COMMUNITIES 
 

European Commission - DG TRADE 
Services and investment unit 
Rue de la Loi 170 
B-1000 Bruxelles, Belgium 
E-mail: TRADE-GATS-CONTACT-POINTS@ec.europa.eu 

AUSTRIA Federal Ministry of Economics and Labour 
Department for Multilateral Trade Policy - C2/11 
Stubenring 1 
A-1011 Vienna, Austria 
Telephone: + 43 1 711 00 (ext. 6915/5946) 
Telefax: + 43 1 718 05 08 
E-mail: post@C211.bmwa.gv.at 

BELGIUM Service Public Fédéral Economie, PME,  
Classes Moyennes et Energie Direction Générale du Potentiel Economique  
(Federal Public Service Economy, SMEs,  
Self-employed and Energy Directorate – General Economic Potential)  
Rue du Progrès, 50 
B-1210 Brussels, Belgium 
Telephone: (322) 277 51 11 
Telefax: (322) 277 53 11 
E-mail: info-gats@economie.fgov.be 

BULGARIA 
 

Foreign Economic Policy Directorate 
Ministry of Economy and Energy 
12, Alexander Batenberg Str.  
1000 Sofia, Bulgaria 
Telephone: (359 2) 940 77 61 
  (359 2) 940 77 93 
Telefax: (359 2) 981 49 15 
E-mail: wto.bulgaria@mee.government.bg 

CYPRUS Permanent Secretary, Planning Bureau 
Apellis and Nirvana corner 
1409 Nicosia, Cyprus 
Telephone: (357 22) 406 801 
  (357 22) 406 852 
Telefax: (357 22) 666 810 
E-mail: planning@cytanet.com.cy 
  maria.philippou@planning.gov.cy 

CZECH REPUBLIC Ministry of Industry and Trade 
Department of Multilateral and EU Common Trade Policy 
Politických vězňů 20 
Praha 1, Czech Republic 
Telephone: (420 2) 2485 2012 
Telefax: (420 2) 2485 2656 
E-mail: brennerova@mpo.cz 



DENMARK Ministry of Foreign Affairs 
International Trade Policy and Business 
Asiatisk Plads 2 
DK-1448 Copenhagen K, Denmark 
Telephone: (45) 3392 0000 
Telefax: (45) 3254 0533 
E-mail: eir@um.dk 

ESTONIA Ministry of Economic Affairs and Communications 
11 Harju street  
15072 Tallinn, Estonia 
Telephone: (372) 639 7654 

(372) 625 6360 
Telefax: (372) 631 3660 
E-mail: services@mkm.ee 

FINLAND Ministry for Foreign Affairs 
Department for External Economic Relations 
Unit for the EC's Common Commercial Policy 
PO Box 176 
00161 Helsinki, Finland 
Telephone: (358-9) 1605 5528 
Telefax: (358-9) 1605 5599 

FRANCE Ministère de l'Economie, des Finances et de l'Emploi 
Direction Générale du Trésor et de la Politique Economique (DGTPE) 
Service des Affaires Multilatérales et du Développement 
Sous Direction Politique Commerciale et Investissement 
Bureau Services, Investissements et Propriété Intellectuelle 
139 rue de Bercy (télédoc 233) 
75572 Paris Cédex 12, France 
Téléphone: +33 (1) 44 87 20 30 
Fax: +33 (1) 53 18 96 55 
Secrétariat Général des Affaires Européennes 
2, Boulevard Diderot 
75572 Paris Cédex 12 
Téléphone: +33 (1) 44 87 10 13 
Fax: +33 (1) 44 87 12 61 

GERMANY 
 

German Office for Foreign Trade - BFAI 
Agrippastrasse 87-93 
50676 Köln, Germany 
Telephone: (49221) 2057 345 
Telefax: (49221) 2057 262 
E-mail: zoll@bfai.de 

GREECE 
 

Ministry of Economy and Finance 
Directorate for Foreign Trade Policy 
1 Kornarou Str. 
10563 Athens, Greece 
Telephone: (30 210) 3286121,  

 (30 210) 3286126 
Fax:  (30 210) 3286179 



HUNGARY 
 

Ministry of Economy and Transport 
Trade Policy Department 
Honvéd utca 13-15. 
H-1055 Budapest, Hungary 
Tel: 361 336 7715 
Fax: 361 336 7559 
E-mail: kereskedelempolitika@gkm.gov.hu 

IRELAND 
 

Department of Enterprise, Trade and Employment 
International Trade Section (WTO) 
Earlsfort Centre 
Hatch St. 
Dublin 2, Ireland 
Telephone: (353 1) 6312533 
Telefax: (353 1) 6312561 

ITALY 
 

Ministero degli Affari Esteri 
Piazzale della Farnesina, 1 
00194 Rome, Italy 
 
General Directorate for Multilateral Economic and Financial Cooperation 
WTO Coordination Office 
Telephone: (39) 06 3691 4353 
Telefax: (39) 06 3242 482 
E-mail: dgce.omc@esteri.it 
 
General Directorate for European Integration 
Office II – EU external relations 
Telephone: (39) 06 3691 2740 
Telefax: (39) 06 3691 6703 
E-mail: dgie2@esteri.it  
 
Ministero del Commercio Internazionale 
 
Viale Boston, 25 
00144 Rome, Italy 
 
General Directorate for Commercial Policy 
Division V 
Telephone: (39) 06 5993 2589 
Telefax: (39) 06 5993 2149  
E-mail: polcom5@mincomes.it 

LATVIA 
 

WTO Division  
Foreign Economic Relations and Trade Policy Department 
Ministry of Economics 
Brivibas Str. 55 
Riga, LV 1519, Latvia 
Telephone: (371) 67 013 008 
Telefax: (371) 67 280 882 
E-mail: pto@em.gov.lv 



LITHUANIA 
 

Division of International Economic Organizations, 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs 
J. Tumo Vaizganto 2 
2600 Vilnius, Lithuania 
Telephone: (370 52) 362 594 / (370 52) 362 598 
Telefax: (370 52) 362 586 
E-mail: teo.ed@urm.1t 

LUXEMBOURG 
 

Ministère des Affaires Etrangères 
Direction des Relations Economiques Internationales 
6, rue de l'Ancien Athénée 
L-1144 Luxembourg, Luxembourg 
Telephone: (352) 478 2355 
Telefax: (352) 22 20 48 

MALTA 
 

Director 
International Economic Relations Directorate 
Economic Policy Division 
Ministry of Finance 
St. Calcedonius Square 
Floriana CMR02, Malta  
Telephone: (356) 21 249 359 
Fax:  (356) 21 249 355 
Email: epd@gov.mt 
  joseph.bugeja@gov.mt 

NETHERLANDS 
 

Ministry of Economic Affairs 
Directorate-General for Foreign Economic Relations 
Trade Policy and Globalisation (ALP: N/101) 
P.O. Box 20101 
2500 EC Den Haag, The Netherlands 
Telephone: (3170) 379 6451 

 (3170) 379 6250 
Telefax: (3170) 379 7221 
E-mail: M.F.T.RiemslagBaas@MinEZ.nl 

POLAND 
 

Ministry of Economy 
Department of Trade Policy 
Ul. Żurawia 4a  
00-507 Warsaw, Poland 
Telephone: (48 22) 693 4826 

 (48 22) 693 4856 
 (48 22) 693 4808 

Telefax: (48 22) 693 4018 
E-mail: joanna.bek@mg.gov.pl 



PORTUGAL 
 

Ministry of Economy  
ICEP Portugal  
Market Intelligence Unit 
Av. 5 de Outubro, 101 
1050-051 Lisbon, Portugal 
Telephone: (351 21) 790 95 00 
Telefax: (351 21) 790 95 81 
E-mail: informação@icep.pt  
 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs 
General Directorate for Community Affairs (DGAC) 
R da Cova da Moura 1 
1350 –11 Lisbon, Portugal 
Telephone: (351 21) 393 55 00 
Telefax: (351 21) 395 45 40 

ROMANIA 
 

Ministry for SMEs, Trade, Tourism and Liberal Professions 
Department for Foreign Trade 
Str. Ion Campineanu nr. 16 
Sector 1, Bucharest, Romania 
Telephone and fax: (41 22) 401 05 58 

SLOVAK REPUBLIC 
 

Ministry of Economy of the Slovak Republic  
Trade and Consumer Protection Directorate  
Trade Policy Department  
Mierová 19  
827 15 Bratislava 212, Slovak Republic  
Telephone: (421-2) 4854 7110 
Telefax: (421-2) 4854 3116 

SLOVENIA 
 

Ministry of Economy of the Republic of Slovenia 
Head of Multilateral Division 
Kotnikova 5 
1000 Ljubljana, Slovenia 
Telephone: (386 1) 478 35 42 

 (386 1) 478 35 53 
Telefax: (386 1) 478 36 11 
E-mail: dimitrij.grcar@gov.si 
Internet: www.mg-rs.si 

SPAIN 
 

Ministerio de Industria, Turismo y Comercio 
Secretaría de Estado de Turismo y Comercio 
Secretaría General de Comercio Exterior 
Subdirección General de Comercio Internacional de Servicios 
Paseo de la Castellana 162 
28046 Madrid, España 
Telephone: (34 91) 349 3781 
Telefax: (34 91) 349 5226 
E-mail: sgcominser.sscc@mcx.es 



SWEDEN 
 

National Board of Trade  
Global Trade Department 
Box 6803 
113 86 Stockholm, Sweden 
Telephone: (46 8) 690 4800 
Telefax: (46 8) 30 6759 
E-mail: registrator@kommers.se 
Internet: http://www.kommers.se 
 
Ministry for Foreign Affairs 
Department: UD-IH 
103 39 Stockholm, Sweden 
Telephone: 46 (0) 8 405 10 00 
Telefax: 46 (0) 8723 11 76 
E-mail: registrator@foreign.ministry.se 
Internet: http://www.sweden.gov.se/ 

UNITED KINGDOM 
 

Department for Business Enterprise and Regulatory Reform 
Trade Policy Unit 
Bay 4127 
1 Victoria Street 
London SW1H 0ET, England, United Kingdom 
Telephone: (4420) 7215 5922 
Fax: (4420) 7215 2235  
E-mail: A133servicesEWT@berr.gsi.gov.uk 
Internet: www.berr.gov.uk/europeantrade/ 

 



CARIFORUM PARTY AND SIGNATORY CARIFORUM STATES 

SERVICES INVESTMENT 
ANTIGUA AND BARBUDA  
Permanent Secretary 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs and International 
Trade 
Office of the Prime Minister 
Government Complex 
Queen Elizabeth Highway 
St. John's, Antigua and Barbuda 
Tel: 268-462-1052; 462-4145 
268-462-0773 exts. 249/ 240/ 245/ 291 
Fax: 268-462-2482 
Email: foreignaffairs@ab.gov.ag 

Permanent Secretary 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs and International 
Trade 
Office of the Prime Minister 
Government Complex 
Queen Elizabeth Highway 
St. John's, Antigua and Barbuda 
Tel: 268-462-1052; 462-4145; 
268-462-0773 exts. 249/ 240/ 245/ 291 
Fax: 268-462-2482 
Email: foreignaffairs@ab.gov.ag 

THE BAHAMAS  
Director of Economic Planning 
Ministry of Finance 
Cecil Wallace Whitfield Centre  
PO Box N3017 
Nassau, The Bahamas 
Tel : (242) 702-1526 ; (242) 702-1594 
Fax: (242) 327-1618 
Email: mofgeneral@bahamas.gov.bs 

Bahamas Investment Authority 
Office of the Prime Minister 
West Bay Street 
PO Box CB10980 
Nassau, The Bahamas 
Tel: (242) 327 5940-4 
Fax: (242) 327 5907 
Email: info@opm.gov.bs 

BARBADOS  
The Permanent Secretary 
Division of Foreign Trade and International 
Business 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Foreign Trade and 
International Business 
1 Culloden Road 
St. Michael BB14018, Barbados 
Tel: (246) 431-2200 
Fax: (246) 228-7840 
Email: trade@foreign.gov.bb 
Website: www.foreign.gov.bb 

The Permanent Secretary 
Division of Foreign Trade and International 
Business 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Foreign Trade and 
International Business 
1 Culloden Road 
St. Michael BB14018, Barbados 
Tel: (246) 431-2200 
Fax: (246) 228-7840 
Email: trade@foreign.gov.bb 
Website: www.foreign.gov.bb 

BELIZE  
Director  
Directorate for Foreign Trade 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Foreign Trade 
2nd Floor, New Administration Building 
Belmopan City, Belize 
Tel: (501) 822-3263 
Fax: (501) 822-2837 
Email: foreigntrade@btl.net 

Director  
Directorate for Foreign Trade 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Foreign Trade 
2nd Floor, New Administration Building 
Belmopan City, Belize 
Tel: (501) 822-3263 
Fax: (501) 822-2837 
Email: foreigntrade@btl.net 



SERVICES INVESTMENT 
DOMINICA  
Permanent Secretary 
Ministry of Trade, Industry, Consumer and 
Diaspora Affairs 
4th Floor Financial Centre 
Kennedy Avenue 
Roseau, Dominica 
Tel : (767) 266 3276 
Fax : (767) 448 5200 
Email: domtrade@cwdom.dm 

Executive Director 
Invest Dominica Authority 
P.O. Box 293 
Valley Road 
Roseau, Dominica 
Tel: (767) 448 2045 
Fax: (767) 448 5840 
Email: investdominica@investdominica.dm  
Website: www.investdominica.dm 

DOMINICAN REPUBLIC  
Unidad de Disciplinas Comerciales 
Dirección de Comercio Exterior y 
Administración de Tratados 
Comerciales Internacionales. 
Secretaría de Estado de Industria y Comercio. 
Ave. 27 de Febrero 209, Naco. Santo 
Domingo, República Dominicana 
Tel: 809-567-7192 
Fax: 809-381-8076, 809-381-8079 
Website: www.seic.gov.do/comercioexterior 

Unidad de Disciplinas Comerciales 
Dirección de Comercio Exterior y 
Administración de Tratados 
Comerciales Internacionales. 
Secretaría de Estado de Industria y Comercio. 
Ave. 27 de Febrero 209, Naco. Santo Domingo, 
República Dominicana 
Tel: 809-567-7192 
Fax: 809-381-8076, 809-381-8079 
Website: www.seic.gov.do/comercioexterior 

GRENADA  
Permanent Secretary 
Ministry of Economic Development and 
Planning 
The Financial Complex 
The Carenage, St. George's 
Grenada 
Tel: (473) 440-2731 
Email: gndtrade@yahoo.com 

Permanent Secretary 
Ministry of Economic Development and 
Planning 
The Financial Complex 
The Carenage, St. George's 
Grenada 
Tel: (473)-440-2731 
Email: gndtrade@yahoo.com 

HAITI  
Coordonnateur 
Bureau de Coordination et de Suivi 
26 rue Mercier Laham 
Delmas 60 
Port au Prince, Haiti 
Tel: (509) 246 7850; (509) 246 7860;  
(509) 249 7800; (509) 510 4270 

Coordonnateur 
Bureau de Coordination et de Suivi 
26 rue Mercier Laham 
Delmas 60 
Port au Prince, Haiti 
Tel: (509) 246 7850; (509) 246 7860;  
(509) 249 7800; (509) 510 4270 



SERVICES INVESTMENT 
GUYANA  
Ministry of Foreign Trade and International 
Cooperation 
"Takuba Lodge" 
254 South Road and New Garden Street 
Georgetown, Guyana 
Tel: (592) 225-7055, 226-1606-9, ext. 234 
Fax: (592) 226 8426 
Email: minister@moftic.gov.gy 

Guyana Office for Investment 
190 Camp and Church Streets 
Georgetown, Guyana 
Tel: (592) 225-0653, 227-0653, 225-0658 
Fax: (592) 225-0655 
Email: goinvest@goinvest.gov.gy  
Website: www.goinvest.gov.gy 

JAMAICA  
Contact Centre 
Jamaica Trade and Invest  
18 Trafalgar Road, Kingston 10 
Jamaica W.I. 
Tel : (876) 978-7755 
Fax : (876) 946-0090 
Email: info@jti.org.jm  

Contact Centre 
Jamaica Trade and Invest  
18 Trafalgar Road, Kingston 10 
Jamaica W.I. 
Tel : (876) 978-7755 
Fax : (876) 946-0090 
Email: info@jti.org.jm 

SAINT CHRISTHOPHER AND NEVIS  
Permanent Secretary  
Ministry of Finance 
P.O. Box 186 
Church Street 
Basseterre, St. Christopher and Nevis 
Tel: (869) 467- 1088 
Fax: (869) 465- 1532 
Email: finsec@gov.kn  

Permanent Secretary  
Ministry of Finance 
P.O. Box 186 
Church Street 
Basseterre, St. Christopher and Nevis 
Tel: (869) 467- 1088 
Fax: (869) 465- 1532 
Email: finsec@gov.kn 

SAINT LUCIA  
Permanent Secretary  
Ministry of Trade, Industry, Commerce and 
Consumer Affairs 
Heraldine Rock Building  
Waterfront,  
Castries, Saint Lucia 
Tel: (758) 452-2627; (758) 468-4203 
Fax: (758) 453-7347 
Email: pscommerce@candw.lc; 
mitandt@candw.lc  

Permanent Secretary  
Ministry of Trade, Industry, Commerce and 
Consumer Affairs 
Heraldine Rock Building  
Waterfront,  
Castries, Saint Lucia  
Tel: (758) 452-2627; (758) 468-4203 
Fax: (758) 453-7347 
Email: pscommerce@candw.lc; 
mitandt@candw.lc 



SERVICES INVESTMENT 
SAINT VINCENT AND GRENADINES   
Permanent Secretary 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs Commerce and 
Trade 
3rd Floor Administrative Building 
Bay Street 
Kingstown, St. Vincent and the Grenadines 
Tel: (784) 456-2060 
Fax: (784) 456-2610 

Permanent Secretary 
Ministry of Finance and Planning 
2nd Floor Administrative Building 
Bay Street 
Kingstown, St. Vincent and the Grenadines 
Tel: (784) 457-1343 
Fax: (784) 457-2943 

SURINAME  
Director of Trade 
Ministry of Trade and Industry 
Havenlaan Noord Paramaribo  
Suriname 
Tel: (597) 402692 
Fax: (597) 402692 
Email: odhandelmhi@minhi.sr 

Head 
Fiscal Affairs, Indirect Tax Division 
Ministry of Finance 
Dr. Mr. J.C. de Mirandastraat 5-7 
Suriname 
Tel: (597) 425340 
Fax: (597) 424062 

TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO  
The Librarian 
Ministry of Trade and Industry 
Level 15 Nicholas Tower 
63-65 Independence Square 
Port of Spain, Trinidad and Tobago 
Tel: (868) 624-4885 ; 623-2931- 4 Ext. 2326 
Fax: (868) 627-8488 
Email: library@tradeind.gov.tt 

The Librarian 
Ministry of Trade and Industry 
Level 15 Nicholas Tower 
63-65 Independence Square 
Port of Spain, Trinidad and Tobago 
Tel: (868) 624-4885; 623-2931- 4 Ext. 2326 
Fax: (868) 627-8488 
Email: library@tradeind.gov.tt 

 
_________________ 

 



ANNEX VI 
COVERED PROCUREMENTS 

Appendix 11 

Entities which Procure in Accordance with the Provisions 
of Chapter 3 of Title IV 

Section 1: Commitments by the Signatory CARIFORUM States 
SUPPLIES 
 Thresholds: SDR 155,000 
SERVICES 
Specified in Appendix 2 to this Annex 
 Thresholds: SDR 155,000 
WORKS 
Specified in Appendix 3 to this Annex 
 Thresholds: SDR 6,500,000 

List of entities 

Antigua and Barbuda 
1. Office of the Prime Minister 
2. Ministry of Foreign Affairs 
3. Ministry of Public Information and Broadcasting 
4. Ministry of Labour 
5. Ministry of Establishment 
6. Ministry of Tourism 
7. Ministry of Civil Aviation 
8. Ministry of Works, Transformation and the Environment 
9. Ministry of Finance and the Economy 
10. Ministry of Industry and Commerce 
11. Ministry of Legal Affairs 
12. Ministry of Justice 
13. Ministry of Health 
14. Ministry of Sports and Youth Affairs 
15. Ministry of Housing, Culture and Social Transformation 
16. Ministry of Education 
17. Ministry of Agriculture, Lands, Marine Resources and Agro Industries 
18. Office of the Governor General 
19. Office of the Cabinet 
20. Auditor General Department 
21. Office of the Ombudsman 
22. Office of the Parliament 

                                                 
1 For the purposes of clarity, "SDR" denotes Special Drawing Rights, an international reserve asset created by 

the International Monetary Fund and whose value is based on a basket of key international currencies. 



Barbados  
1. Office of the Governor General 
2. Department of the Judiciary 
3. Office of the Parliament 
4. Prime Minister's Office  
5. Ministry of Finance 
6. Cabinet Office 
7. Ministry of the Civil Service 
8. Office of the Ombudsman 
9. Auditor General Department 
10. Ministry of Commerce, Consumer Affairs and Business Development 
11. Ministry of Economic Affairs and Development 
12. Ministry of Health  
13. Ministry of Social Transformation 
14. Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Development 
15. Ministry of Energy and the Environment 
16. Ministry of Tourism and International Transport 
17. Ministry of Home Affairs 
18. Director of Public Prosecutions 
19. Attorney General Department  
20. Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Foreign Trade 
21. Ministry of Education, Youth Affairs and Sports 
22. Ministry of Labour and Public Sector Reform 
23. Ministry of Public Works and Transport 
24. Ministry of Housing and Lands 

The Bahamas 
1. Office of the Prime Minister 
2. Ministry of Public Works and Transport 
3. Ministry of Tourism and Aviation 
4. Ministry of Foreign Affairs 
5. Ministry of Education, Youth, Sports and Culture 
6. Ministry of Agriculture and Marine Resources 
7. Ministry of Labour and Maritime Affairs 
8. Ministry of Lands and Local Government 
9. Ministry of Housing and National Insurance 
10. Ministry of National Security 
11. Ministry of Finance 

Belize 
1. Attorney General's Ministry 
2. Ministry of Education and Labour 
3. Ministry of Agriculture and Fisheries 
4. Ministry of Defence, Housing, Youth and Sports 
5. Ministry of Finance and the Public Service 
6. Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Foreign Trade 



7. Ministry of Health, Local Government, Transport and Communications 
8. Ministry of Home Affairs and Public Utilities 
9. Ministry of Human Development 
10. Ministry of National Development, Investment and Culture 
11. Ministry of National Resources and Environment 
12. Ministry of Tourism, Information and National Emergency Management 
13. Ministry of Works 
14. Office of Contractor General 
15. Office of Ombudsman 
16. Offices of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 
17. Auditor General 
18. Office of the Governor General 

Dominica 
1. Ministry of Public Works and Public Utilities 
2. Ministry of Tourism, Industry and Private Sector Relations 
3. Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and the Environment 
4. Ministry of Education, Human Resource Development, Sports and Youth Affairs 
5. Ministry of Finance and Planning 
6. Ministry of Housing, Lands, Telecommunications, Energy and Ports 
7. Ministry of Health and Social Security 
8. Ministry of Community Development, Information and Gender Affairs 
9. Ministry of Legal Affairs and Immigration 
10. Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Trade and Labour 
11. Establishment, Personnel and Training Department 
12. Office of the Prime Minister 

Dominican Republic 
1. Contraloría General de la República 
2. Secretaría de Estado de Interior y Policía 
3. Secretaría de Estado de las Fuerzas Armadas 
4. Secretaría de Estado de Relaciones Exteriores 
5. Secretaría de Estado de Agricultura 
6. Secretaría de Estado de Hacienda 
7. Secretaría de Estado de Educación 
8. Secretaría de Estado de Salud Pública y Asistencia Social 
9. Secretaría de Estado de Deportes, Educación Física y Recreación 
10. Secretaría de Estado de Trabajo 
11. Secretaría de Estado de Industria y Comercio 
12. Secretaría de Estado de Turismo 
13. Secretaría de Estado de la Mujer 
14. Secretaría de Estado de la Juventud 
15. Secretaría de Estado de Educación Superior, Ciencia y Tecnología 
16. Secretaría de Estado de Obras Públicas y Comunicaciones 
17. Secretaría de Estado de Medio Ambiente y Recursos Naturales 
18. Secretaría de Estado de Cultura 
19. La Presidencia de la República Dominicana 



20. Secretaría de Estado de Economía, Planificación y Desarrollo 
21. Secretaría de Estado de la Presidencia 
22. Secretariado Administrativo de la Presidencia 

Grenada 
1. Ministry of Communications and Works 
2. Ministry of Finance 
3. Ministry of Education 
4. Ministry of Health 
5. Ministry of Agriculture 
6. Ministry of Housing 

Guyana 
1. Office of the Prime Minister 
2. Ministry of Health 
3. Ministry of Finance 
4. Ministry of Home Affairs 
5. Ministry of Agriculture 
6. Ministry of Public Works and Communications 
7. Ministry of Health 
8. Ministry of Education 

Haiti 
1. Conseil National des Marchés Publics (CNMP) 
2. Ministère des Travaux Publics, Transports et Communications 
3. Ministère de l'Economie et des Finances 
4. Ministère de l'Education Nationale et de la Formation Professionnelle 
5. Ministère de la Justice et de la Sécurité Publique 
6. Ministère de la Santé Publique et de la Population 

Jamaica 
1. Accountant General 
2. Customs Department 
3. Department of Correctional Services 
4. Office of The Contractor General 
5. Office of The Governor General And Staff 
6. Office of The Prime Minister 
7. Office of The Cabinet 
8. Ministry of Agriculture 
9. Ministry of Education 
10. Ministry of Energy, Mining And Telecommunications 
11. Ministry Finance And The Public Service 
12. Ministry of Foreign Affairs And Foreign Trade 
13. Ministry of Health And Environment 
14. Ministry of Industry, Commerce And Investment 
15. Ministry of Information, Culture, Youth And Sports 
16. Ministry of Justice 
17. Ministry of Labour And Social Security 



18. Ministry of National Security 
19. Ministry of Tourism 
20. Ministry of Transport And Works 
21. Ministry of Water And Housing 
22. Jamaica Fire Brigade 

Saint Christopher and Nevis 
1. The Ministry of Finance – Central Purchasing Office 
2. The Ministry of Industry, Commerce and Consumer Affairs – Supply Office 
3. Ministry of Health  

Saint Lucia 
1. Office of the Prime Minister 
2. Ministry of Finance and Physical Development 
3. Ministry of Home Affairs and National Security 
4. Ministry of Social Transformation, Human Services, Family Affairs, Youth and Sports 
5. Ministry of Health and Labour Relations 
6. Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries 
7. Ministry of Education and Culture 
8. Ministry of External Affairs, International Financial Services and Broadcasting 
9. Ministry of Housing, Urban Renewal and Local Government 
10. Ministry of Communications, Works, Transport and Public Utilities 
11. Ministry of Trade, Industry and Commerce 
12. Ministry of Economic Affairs and Economic Planning, National Development and the 

Public Service 
13. Ministry of Tourism and Civil Aviation 

Saint Vincent and the Grenadines 
 Ministry of Finance 

Suriname 
1. Ministry of Trade and Industry 
2. Ministry of Finance 
3. Ministry of Public Health 
4. Ministry of Foreign Affairs 
5. Ministry of Defense 
6. Ministry of Home Affairs 
7. Ministry of Justice and Police 
8. Ministry of Natural Resources 
9. Ministry of Agriculture, Animal Husbandry and Fisheries 
10. Ministry of Education and Community Development 
11. Ministry of Public Works 
12. Ministry of Regional Development 
13. Ministry of Planning and Development Cooperation 
14. Ministry of Labour, Technology and Environment 
15. Ministry of Social Affairs and Housing 
16. Ministry of Transport, Communication and tourism 
17. Ministry of Physical Planning, Land and Forestry Management 



Trinidad and Tobago 
1. Ministry of Agriculture, Land and Marine Resources  
2. Ministry of Community Development, Culture and Gender Affairs  
3. Ministry of Education  
4. Ministry of Energy and Energy Industries  
5. Ministry of Finance  
6. Ministry of Foreign Affairs  
7. Ministry of Health  
8. Ministry of Housing  
9. Ministry of Labour and Small and Micro-Enterprises Development  
10. Ministry of Legal Affairs  
11. Ministry of Local Government  
12. Ministry of National Security  
13. Ministry of Planning and Development  
14. Ministry of Public Administration and Information  
15. Ministry of Public Utilities and the Environment  
16. Ministry of Science, Technology and Tertiary Education  
17. Ministry of Social Development  
20. Ministry of Sport and Youth Affairs  
21. Office of the Attorney General  
22. Ministry of Tourism  
23. Ministry of Trade and Industry  
24. Ministry of Works and Transport  
25. Office of the Prime Minister  

Section 2: Commitments by the EC Party 

SUPPLIES 
 Thresholds: SDR 130,000 
SERVICES 
Specified in Appendix 2 to this Annex 
 Thresholds: SDR 130,000 
WORKS 
Specified in Appendix 3 to this Annex 
Thresholds: SDR 5,000,000 
 
LIST OF ENTITIES 
All entities listed by the European Communities in Annex 1 to Appendix I of the Agreement on 
Government Procurement concluded under the auspices of the World Trade Organisation, as that 
Appendix may apply from time to time and including any conditions, limitations and derogations 
mentioned therein. 

Without prejudice to any rights and obligations, this list is publicly available at the following 
web site: http://www.wto.org/english/tratop_e/gproc_e/appendices_e.htm#ec 
 



Appendix 2 
Services 

Section 1: Commitments by the Signatory CARIFORUM States 
All services procured by the covered entities listed in Appendix 1, pursuant to the conditions, 
limitations and derogations contained in Chapter 3 of Title IV, and subject to the General Notes 
and Derogations in Appendix 4. 

Section 2: Commitments by the EC Party 
All services listed by the European Communities in Annex 4 to Appendix I of the Agreement on 
Government Procurement concluded under the auspices of the World Trade Organisation, as that 
Appendix may apply from time to time and including any conditions, limitations and derogations 
mentioned therein. 
Without prejudice to any rights and obligations, this list is publicly available at the following 
web site: http://www.wto.org/english/tratop_e/gproc_e/appendices_e.htm#ec 

Appendix 3 
Construction Services 

DEFINITION: 
For the purposes of the Chapter on Public Procurement, a construction services or works contract 
is a contract which has as its objective the realization by whatever means of civil or building 
works, in the sense of Division 51 of the Central Product Classification. 
The provisions of the Chapter on Public Procurement shall apply to the procurement of 
construction services contained in Division 51 of the Central Product Classification. 

Appendix 4 
General Notes and Derogations from the provisions of Chapter 3 of Title IV 

Signatory CARIFORUM States 
1. Subject to paragraph 6, the provisions of Chapter 3 of Title IV shall be applicable to the 

entities as listed under Appendix 1, and do not include other agencies of government which 
may fall within the portfolio of the listed entities.  

2. The provisions of Chapter 3 of Title IV shall not be applicable to procurement by the 
covered entities listed under Appendix 1 in connection with activities in the field of energy 
and the postal sector. 

3. The Signatory CARIFORUM States reserve the right to participate in public contract 
award procedures or to provide for such contracts to be performed in the context of 
sheltered projects or programmes, including sheltered employment programmes for the 
handicapped or incarcerated, and relief employment programmes and projects. 

4. By derogation to Article 171(2)(f), the total value of contracts awarded for the additional 
services shall not exceed one hundred per cent of the amount of the original contract.  

5. The primary means of publication in respect of Annex VII Parts 1, 2 and 3, shall be the 
CARIFORUM regional on-line facility established pursuant to the provisions of 
Article 182(2) and consistent with the provisions of Article 180(4). 

6. There is no obligation on CARIFORUM States to officially publish judicial decisions. 



7. In respect of the Dominican Republic, the provisions of Chapter 3 of Title IV shall apply to 
the entities listed in Appendix 1 including gobernaciones and other agencies of government 
that fall within the portfolio of such entities, except under the following circumstances and 
conditions: 
(a) Secretaría de Estado de Interior y Policía: This Chapter does not cover: 

(a) procurement by the Dirección General de Migración; or (b) procurement by the 
Policía Nacional of: (i) goods classified under Group 447 (weapons and ammunition 
and parts thereof) of the United Nations Central Product Classification 1.0 (CPC, 
version 1.0), or (ii) combat, assault and tactical vehicles. 

(b) Policía Nacional in the Secretaría de Estado de Interior y Policía and Secretaría de 
Estado de las Fuerzas Armadas: This Chapter does not cover procurement of goods 
classified under Section 2 (food products, beverages and tobacco; textiles, apparel 
and leather products) of the CPC. 

(c) Secretaría de Estado de las Fuerzas Armadas: This Chapter does not cover: 
(a) procurement by the Departamento Nacional de Investigación, and the Instituto de 
Altos Estudios para la Defensa y Seguridad Nacional; or (b) procurement of: 
(i) goods classified under Group 447 (weapons and ammunition and parts thereof) of 
the CPC; (ii) aircraft, airframe structural components, aircraft components, parts and 
accessories; (iii) landing and ground handling equipment; (iv) docks; (v) ships and 
ship components, parts and accessories; (vi) marine equipment; or (vii) combat, 
assault and tactical vehicles. 

(d) Secretaría de Estado de Relaciones Exteriores: This Chapter does not cover 
procurement by the Dirección General de Pasaportes for the production of passports. 

(e) Secretaría de Estado de Agricultura: This Chapter does not cover procurement made 
in furtherance of agricultural support programs. 

(f) Secretaría de Estado de Hacienda: This Chapter does not cover procurement by the 
Tesorería Nacional with regard to the issuance of tax stamps or postage stamps, or 
the production of checks and treasury bonds. 

(g) Secretaría de Estado de Educación: This Chapter does not cover procurement made 
in furtherance of school feeding programs (Desayuno Escolar) or programs to 
support the dissemination of education, the well-being of students, or the 
accessibility of education, including at the border with Haiti (Zona Fronteriza) and in 
other rural or impoverished areas. 

(h) Secretariado Técnico de la Presidencia: This Chapter does not cover procurement by 
the Comisión Nacional de Asuntos Nucleares. 

(i) Instituto Dominicano de las Telecomunicaciones (INDOTEL): This Chapter does not 
apply to procurement of goods and services required for the implementation of 
special projects executed by the Fondo de Desarrollo de las Telecomunicaciones to 
implement the Política Social sobre Servicio Universal of the Dominican Republic 
pursuant to the Ley General de Telecomunicaciones No.153-98 and Reglamento del 
Fondo de Desarrollo de las Telecomunicaciones. 

(j) Banco Central de la República Dominicana: This Chapter does not cover the issuance 
of currency and coins. 



The EC Party 
1. Procurement by procuring entities covered under Appendix 1 in connection with activities 

in the fields of drinking water, energy, transport and the postal sector are not covered by 
Chapter 3 of Title IV. 

2. The Member States of the European Union may reserve the right to participate in public 
contract award procedures to sheltered workshops or provide for such contracts to be 
performed in the context of sheltered employment programmes where most of the 
employees concerned are handicapped persons who, by reason of the nature or the 
seriousness of their disabilities, cannot carry on occupations under normal conditions. 

 
_________________ 

 
 



ANNEX VII 
MEANS OF PUBLICATION 

Part 1: Publication for laws, regulations, judicial decisions and administrative 
rulings of general application, and procedures 

For the Signatory CARIFORUM States 
Antigua and Barbuda Website: www.ab.gov.ag 
Barbados The Government Printing Department, Bay Street, St. Michael 
The Bahamas 1. Government Printing 

2. Official Gazette of The Bahamas 
3. Website: http://laws.bahamas.gov.bs/  

Belize Website: www.belizelaw.org 
Dominica Government Printer, High Street, Roseau 
Dominican Republic Website: www.hacienda.gov.do  
Grenada The Kingdom of Grenada Gazette 
Guyana 1. Office of the Clerk of the National Assembly, Georgetown 

2. Website: www.nptaguyana.org 
Haiti 1. Moniteur (Official Gazette of the Republic of Haiti) 

2. Website: www.info.cnmp.gouv.ht  
Jamaica Websites: www.ocg.gov.jm and www.mof.gov.jm  
Saint Christopher and Nevis Saint Christopher and Nevis Gazette 
Saint Lucia Website: www.slugovprintery.com 
Saint Vincent and the 
Grenadines 

Website: www.gov.vc 

Suriname Official Gazette of the Republic of Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago Trinidad and Tobago Gazette 

For the EC Party 
Belgium Laws, royal regulations, ministerial regulations, ministerial circulars 

- le Moniteur Belge 
Jurisprudence – Pasicrisie 

Bulgaria Laws and Regulations – Държавен вестник (State Gazette) 
Judicial decisions - www.sac.government.bg 
Administrative rulings of general application and any procedure - 
www.aop.bg and www.cpc.bg 

Czech Republic Laws and Regulations – Collection of Laws of the Czech Republic 
Rulings of the Office for the Protection of Competition – Collection 
of Rulings of the Office for the Protection of Competition 

Denmark Laws and regulations – Lovtidende 
Judicial decisions - Ugeskrift for Retsvæsen 
Administrative rulings and procedures – Ministerialtidende 
Rulings by the Appeal Board for Public Procurement – 
Konkurrencerådets Dokumentation 



Germany Legislation and regulations – Bundesanzeiger 
Herausgeber : der Bundesminister der Justiz; Verlag: 
Bundesanzeiger, Postfach 108006, 5000 Köln 
Judicial Decisions: Entscheidungsammlungen des: 
Bundesverfassungs-gerichts; Bundesgerichtshofs; 
Bundesverwaltungsgerichts; Bundesfinanzhofs sowie der 
Oberlandesgerichte 

Estonia Laws, regulations and administrative rulings of general application: 
Riigi Teataja 
Judicial decisions of the Supreme Court of Estonia: Riigi Teataja 
(part 3) 

Greece Government Gazette of Greece - Εφηµερίς της Κυβερνήσεως της 
Ελληνικής ∆ηµοκρατίας 

Spain Legislation - Boletín Oficial del Estado 
Judicial rulings - no official publication 

France Legislation - Journal Officiel de la République française 
Jurisprudence - Recueil des arrêts du Conseil d'Etat 
Revue des marchés publics 

Ireland Legislation and regulations - Iris Oifigiuil (Official Gazette of the 
Irish Government) 

Italy Legislation - Gazetta Ufficiale 
Jurisprudence - no official publication 

Cyprus Legislation - Official Gazette of the Republic (Επίσηµη Εφηµερίδα 
της ∆ηµοκρατίας) 
Judicial decisions: Decisions of the Supreme High Court – Printing 
Office (Αποφάσεις Ανωτάτου ∆ικαστηρίου 1999 – Τυπογραφείο 
της ∆ηµοκρατίας) 

Luxembourg Legislation – Memorial 
Jurisprudence – Pasicrisie 

Hungary Legislation - Magyar Közlöny (Official Journal of the Republic of 
Hungary) 
Jurisprudence - Közbeszerzési Értesítő - a Közbeszerzések Tanácsa 
Hivatalos Lapja (Public Procurement Bulletin - Official Journal of 
the Public Procurement Council) 

Latvia Legislation - Latvijas vēstnesis (Official Newspaper) 
Lithuania Laws, regulations and administrative provisions - Official Gazette 

("Valstybės Žinios") of the Republic of Lithuania 
Judicial decisions, jurisprudence – Bulletin of the Supreme Court of 
Lithuania "Teismų praktika"; Bulletin of the Supreme Court of 
Administrative Court of Lithuania "Administracinių teismų 
praktika" 

Malta Legislation – Government Gazette 
Netherlands Legislation - Nederlandse Staatscourant and/or Staatsblad 

Jurisprudence - no official publication 
Austria Österreichisches Bundesgesetzblatt Amtsblatt zur Wiener Zeitung 

Sammlung von Entscheidungen des Verfassungsgerichtshofes 
Sammlung der Entscheidungen des Verwaltungsgerichtshofes – 
administrativrechtlicher und finanzrechtlicher Teil 
Amtliche Sammlung der Entscheidungen des OGH in Zivilsachen 



Poland Legislation Dziennik Ustaw Rzeczypospolitej Polskiej (Journal of 
Laws – Republic of Poland) 
Judicial decisions, jurisprudence "Zamówienia publiczne w 
orzecznictwie. Wybrane orzeczenia zespołu arbitrów i Sądu 
Okręgowego w Warszawie" (Selection of judgments of arbitration 
panels and Regional Court in Warsaw) 

Portugal Legislation - Diário da República Portuguesa 1a Série A e 2a série 
Judicial Publications : Boletim do Ministério da Justiça 
Colectânea de Acordos do SupremoTribunal Administrativo 
Colectânea de Jurisprudencia Das Relações 

Romania Laws and Regulations – Monitorul Oficial al României (Official 
Journal of Romania) 
Judicial decisions, administrative rulings of general application and 
any procedure – www.anrmap.ro 

Slovenia Legislation Official Gazette of the Republic of Slovenia 
Judicial decisions – no official publication 

Slovakia Legislation Zbierka zákonov (Collection of Laws) 
Judicial decisions – no official publication 

Finland Suomen Säädöskokoelma - Finlands Författningssamling (The 
Collection of the Statutes of Finland) 

Sweden Svensk Författningssamling (Swedish Code of Statutes) 
United Kingdom Legislation - HM Stationery Office 

Jurisprudence - Law Reports 
"Public Bodies" - HM Stationery Office 

Part 2: Procurement opportunities 

For the Signatory CARIFORUM States 
Antigua and Barbuda 1. Daily Observer newspaper 

2. Website: www.ab.gov.ag  
Barbados 1. The Barbados Advocate, Fontabelle, St. Michael 

2. Daily Nation: www.nationnews.com  
The Bahamas 1. Freeport News 

2. The Bahama Journal: www.jonesbahamas.com  
3. The Tribune 
4. The Nassau Guardian: www.thenassauguardian.com  
5. The Punch 

Belize 1. Belize Government Gazette: www.printbelize.com  
2. The Guardian Newspaper 
3. The Reporter 

Dominica 1. The Commonwealth of Dominica Gazette 
2. The Chronicle 
3. The Sun 

Dominican Republic Website: www.hacienda.gov.do  
Grenada 1. Grenadian Voice: www.grenadianvoice.com  

2. Grenada Today: www.belgrafix.com  
3. Grenadian Informer 
4. Spiceisle Review: www.spiceisle.com  
5. Grenadian Advocate 



Guyana 1. Guyana Chronicle 
2. Stabroeck News: www.stabroecknews.com  
3. Kaicteur News 

Haiti 1. Nouvelliste  
2. Le Matin  
3. Website: info.cnmp.gouv.ht 

Jamaica 1. The Gleaner: www.jamaica-gleaner.com  
2. The Jamaica Observer 
3. Website: www.jamaica_observer.com  

Saint Christopher and Nevis 1.Observer  
2. Sun St. Christopher and Nevis 

Saint Lucia 1. The Voice of Saint Lucia  
2. St. Lucia Star: www.stluciastar.com  
3. The Mirror: www.stluciamirroronline.com  
4. Saint Lucia Gazette: www.slugovprintery.com  

Saint Vincent and the 
Grenadines 

1. The Vincentian: www.thevincentian.com  
2. The News 
3. The Searchlight: www.searchlight.vc  
4. Saint Vincent and the Grenadines Gazette 

Suriname 1. De Ware Tijd 
2. Dagblad Suriname 
3. Times 
4. De West 

Trinidad and Tobago 1. Trinidad Newsday 
2. Trinidad Express 
3. Website: www.finance.gov.tt 
4. Trinidad and Tobago Gazette 

For the EC Party 
Belgium Official Journal of the European Union 

Le Bulletin des Adjudications 
Other publications in the specialized press 

Bulgaria Official Journal of the European Union 
Държавен вестник (State Gazette) http://dv.parliament.bg 
Public Procurement Register (www.aop.bg) 

Czech Republic Official Journal of the European Union 
Denmark Official Journal of the European Union 
Germany Official Journal of the European Union 
Estonia Official Journal of the European Union 
Greece Official Journal of the European Union 

Publication in the daily, financial, regional and specialized press 
Spain Official Journal of the European Union 
France Official Journal of the European Union 

Bulletin officiel des annonces des marchés publics 
Ireland Official Journal of the European Union 

Daily Press: "Irish Independent", "Irish Times", "Irish Press", 
"Cork Examiner" 

Italy Official Journal of the European Union 



Cyprus Official Journal of the European Union 
Official Gazette of the Republic 
Local Daily Press 

Latvia Official Journal of the European Union 
Latvijas vēstnesis (official newspaper) 

Lithuania Official Journal of the European Union 
Information supplement "Informaciniai pranešimai" to the Official 
Gazette ("Valstybės žinios") of the Republic of Lithuania 

Luxembourg Official Journal of the European Union 
Daily Press 

Hungary Official Journal of the European Union 
Közbeszerzési Értesítő - a Közbeszerzések Tanácsa Hivatalos Lapja 
(Public Procurement Bulletin - Official Journal of the Public 
Procurement Council) 

Malta Official Journal of the European Union 
Government Gazette 

Netherlands Official Journal of the European Union 
Austria Official Journal of the European Union 

Amtsblatt zur Wiener Zeitung 
Poland Official Journal of the European Union 

Biuletyn Zamówień Publicznych (Public Procurement Bulletin) 
Portugal Official Journal of the European Union 
Romania Official Journal of the European Union 

Monitorul Oficial al României (Official Journal of Romania) 
Electronic System for Public Procurement (www.e-licitatie.ro) 

Slovenia Official Journal of the European Union 
Official Gazette of the Republic of Slovenia 

Slovakia Official Journal of the European Union 
Vestnik verejneho obstaravania (Journal of Public Procurement) 

Finland Official Journal of the European Union 
Julkiset hankinnat Suomessa ja ETA-alueella, Virallisen lehden liite 
(Public Procurement in Finland and at the EEA-area, Supplement to 
the Official Gazette of Finland) 

Sweden Official Journal of the European Union 
United Kingdom Official Journal of the European Union 
European Commission Official Journal of the European Union 

www.ted.europa.eu  

Part 3: Contract Awards 
For the Signatory CARIFORUM States 

The Bahamas 1. Ministry of Finance 
2. Website: www.bahamas.gov.bs/finance  
3. The Official Gazette 

Belize Ministry of Finance - Website: www.governmentofbelize.gov.bz 
Dominican Republic Website: www.hacienda.gov.do  
Grenada Website: http://finance.gov.gd  
Haiti Website: www.info.cnmp.gouv.ht  
Jamaica 1. Website: www.ocg.gov.jm 

2. Website: www.ncc.gov.jm  
Saint Christopher and Nevis Website: www.gov.kn 



Saint Lucia Ministry of Finance Website: www.stlucia.gov.lc 
Saint Vincent and the 
Grenadines 

Ministry of Finance Website: www.gov.vc  

Trinidad and Tobago 1. Ministry of Finance Website: www.finance.gov.tt 
2. Trinidad and Tobago Gazette 

For the EC Party 
Information on contract awards is published in the Official Journal of the European 
Union. 
 


